ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 26, 2013
8:01 a.m
MEMBERS PRESENT
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS
Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Ws Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS
Senat or Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghil |
VEMBERS ABSENT
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS
Representative Charisse Ml lett
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS

Senator Bert Stednman
Senator Bill Wel echowski - excused

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW FEDERAL OVERREACH: ACTIVITIES OF DEPARTMENTS OF LAW
AND NATURAL RESOURCES

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -1- February 26, 2013



SCOIT ORAN, Manager

Public Access Assertion and Defense Unit

Di vision of Mning, Land and Water

Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview on federal overreach
related to activities of the Departnents of Law and Natural
Resour ces.

KENT SULLI VAN, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Nat ural Resources Section

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provided information during the overview on
federal overreach related to activities of the Departnments of
Law and Nat ural Resources.

JOANNE BLACKBURN

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the overview regarding
federal overreach and the activities of the Departnents of Law
and Natural Resources.

STAN LEAPHART Executive Director

Advi sory Conmi ssion on Federal Areas

Depart ment of Natural Resources

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Gave a PowerPoint presentation regarding
t he Advi sory Conm ssion on Federal Areas.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:01: 03 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the joint neeting of the House and Senate
State Affairs Standing Committees to order at 8:01 a.m
Representatives Keller, Isaacson, and Lynn, and Senators G essel
and Dyson were present at the call to order. Represent ati ves
Gattis, Hughes, and Kreiss-Tonkins, and Senator Coghill arrived
as the nmeeting was in progress.

8:01: 05 AM

CHAI R LYNN handed the gavel to Chair Dyson.

8:01: 07 AM

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -2- February 26, 2013



OVERVI EW Federal Overreach: Activities of Departnents of Law
and Natural Resources

8:01:40 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that the only order of business was the
overview regarding federal overreach: activities of the
Departnents of Law and Natural Resources.

8:01:59 AM

SCOTT OGAN, Manager, Public Access Assertion and Defense Unit,
Division of Mning, Land and Witer, Departnment of Natural
Resources (DNR), presented an overview on federal overreach
related to the activities of the Departments of Law and Natural
Resources. He said under the Equal Footing Doctrine, each state
was admitted to the Union on equal footing with all the other
st at es. He said the Subnerged Lands Act of 1953 granted title
to | ands beneath navigable waters. He indicated that the states
were left wth the task of sorting out which waters are
navi gabl e. He nentioned Daniel Ball, a case during the civil
war to determ ne whether a river was capable of being used for
travel, trade, or comerce, because if it was, it would be
consi dered navigable for title purposes. He said the problemin
Alaska is there are so nmany rivers and there is so little
historical information, it is an intensive job to research that
hi st ory. He indicated that the division enploys three people
within the Ofice of H story and Archeology, within DNR to
assist with the research. He relayed that the noney given by
the federal governnment to put toward that effort is al nbst gone.
He offered his understanding that "there's an increnent in the
budget to the state to pick up that effort.”

MR. OGAN tal ked about case |aw He said [states] are not
allowed to reclaim lands that were w thdrawn before statehood.
He nentioned a case in Uah, regarding the Salt Lake, where a
determ nation was nmade that "it did not defeat state title.” He
explained that there has to be a clear and convincing argunent
that U S. Congress expressly intends to defeat state title,
otherwise there is a good chance that the state can prove it
owns the riverbed. He said Kandik and Nation rivers were deened
navigable by the 9th GCircuit Court of Appeals. The case was
appealed to the U S. Suprenme Court and deni ed. He nentioned
anot her case involving John Sturgeon, who was threatened to be
cited for operating his [hovercraft] on the Nation River, which
is basically a state sovereign river. M. Ogan said that in

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 3- February 26, 2013



this case, "they are basically using the Reserve Water Rights

Doctrine as ... an authority that gives them the right to
regulate.” He said the doctrine states that "if water cane off
federal lands and it's in a state river, [then] that extends
their jurisdiction into that river in case |aw precedence.” He
relayed that Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act

(ANI LCA) was set by the Katie John case, which is the authority
by whi ch subsistence fisheries are nmanaged.

MR. OGAN offered his understanding that the @il kana R ver was
the first and possibly last river on which the state, about 20
years ago, achieved a quiet title action. He said that was an
i nportant case because it addressed the issue of susceptibility.
He said [the river] did not have to be used for travel, trade,
and commerce, but if the river has not changed its natural and
ordinary condition since statehood and can currently be used, it
is considered susceptible to navigation, which is why "it's
stayed on." M. Ogan indicated the departnent has made sone
progress getting the U'S. Bureau of Land Managenent (BLM to
clear titles based on susceptibility.

8:07:46 AM

MR. OGAN said in PPL Mntana, LLC v. Montana, a power conpany
sued the State of Montana for back revenues in rents for space
for a dam clainmng navigability. He said nost of the river in
guestion is navigable, but that particular section is not;
therefore, the court decided in favor of the state. M. Qgan
said that case changed the departnent's thinking to consider
parts of rivers that may not be navigable and, thus, my not
belong to the state. He said by riparian law, the upland |and
owner owns the bed of the river if the state does not own it.
He said, "W're pretty happy with where it went, because it
really strengthened the susceptibility argunent, and the [U S.]
Suprene Court said that ... nodern day boats, if they

navi gate the river - then it's ... state owned. So, generally
we're pretty happy with the clarity.”

8:09:10 AM

MR. OGAN directed attention to the next slide, which asks, "Is
it Navigable?" He said the question can nean whether the river
is navigable "for title" or "for public trust purposes.” He

relayed that in statute, subnerged |ands are considered |ands
beyond the nean low tide mark in salt water; tidelands are those
| ands between nean |ow and nmean high; and shorelands relate to
fresh water | akes and rivers.

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -4- February 26, 2013



8:10:13 AM

SENATOR DYSON asked M. Ogan to confirm that the |and between
mean high and | ow water is always public |land and public access.

MR. OGAN answered that is correct. He said the state owns the
tidelands and all the way to the nean high tide mark. He said
peopl e often confuse nean high tide with ordinary high water.
He clarified that ordinary high water is the riparian boundary.
In response to Chair Dyson, he said riparian boundary neans the
I ine between the subnerged |ands and the upl ands. He said this
definition is taken fromthe Daniel Ball case, and, [as shown on
t he slide entitled, "Title Navi gability"], IS in AS
38.04.062(g)(1), which read as foll ows:

(1) "navigable water" neans water that, at the tine the
state achi eved statehood, was used, or was susceptible of being
used, in its ordinary condition as a highway for commerce over
which trade and travel were or could have been conducted in the
customary nodes of trade and travel on water; the wuse or
potential wuse does not need to have been w thout difficulty,
extensive, or |long and conti nuous;

MR. OGAN said the definition of navigability is broad, as seen
in AS 38.05.965(13), which read as foll ows:

(13) "navigable water" nmeans any water of the state
formng a river, stream |ake, pond, slough, creek,

bay, sound, estuary, inlet, strait, passage, canal,

sea or ocean, or any other body of water or waterway

within the territorial limts of the state or subject

to its jurisdiction, that is navigable in fact for any

useful public purpose, including but not limted to

wat er suitable for comrercial navigation, floating of

logs, landing and takeoff of aircraft, and public

boati ng, trapping, hunting waterfow and aquatic

ani mal s, fishing, or ot her public recreational

pur poses;
MR. OGAN stated, "It's navigable under statute, but it doesn't
mean that we own it." He said the ownership test is based on
the aforenentioned Daniel Ball federal -case. He said, "That's

the standard that we fight when we do a quiet title action.”
However, regarding public trusts, Article 8, Section 14 of the
Constitution of the State of Alaska says that the people have
the right to access the navigable waters of the state, as

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 5- February 26, 2013



defined by the legislature, and the legislature has defined
navigable as alnost any public purpose. He said, "So,
notw thstanding the ownership of that |and underneath it, the
people have the right to access the waters in the state of
Al aska, and it's a constitutional right." He indicated that
tensi on can devel op when BLM purports to convey a riverbed. He
expl ai ned, "Sonetines we believe they convey riverbeds that
belong to the state.” He said the underlying property owner
usually a Native corporation or village corporation, believes it
has the right to control who goes on a particular river and wl|
sonetines "lease that exclusive right to a |odge,"” for exanple.
Then people show up in anticipation of using the river bed and
are told it is private property. He said, "That's going to be
an issue that's going to come to the forefront, because we're
being pretty adamant that the public has a right to use it.

They can't trespass an upland when they get to that water - it
doesn't give them that right - but it certainly gives them the
right to be on that river."

8:14: 07 AM

SENATOR DYSON asked M. (Qgan to talk how the Al aska National
Interest Lands Conservation Act (ANILCA) conflicts with the
Constitution of the State of Alaska and traditional |and use.
He asked who decides which law is suprene.

MR. OGAN answered that ultimately it is the court that nmakes the
final decision regarding a quiet title action. He nentioned a
recordabl e disclainer of interest process, which was negotiated
between the state and the federal government, through which if
both parties agree that a body of water is navigable, the

federal governnent wll disclaim an interest and "clear the
clouds to our title." He said the problem is that over the
years, BLM has conveyed |lands the state believes it owns and
reversed navigability determ nations over the years. Currently

the state is in litigation, regarding Msquito Fork at 40-Mle,
trying to reestablish precedence it had established under
@l kana.

8:16:41 AM

MR. OGAN directed attention to a slide entitled, "Odinary H gh
Water Mark." He said sonething that |ooks like a riverbed is
probably a riverbed. He said that is defined on whether or not
there is wupland vegetation. He said the standards of the

ordinary high water mark ordinary high water mark (OHW) are
subj ective and contentious, and the property boundary on an OH\WM

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 6- February 26, 2013



is an anbul atory one. He said the Mtanuska River is a good
exanple of a river whose boundary shifts. He remarked that
there is an enployee in DNR whose sole task is to nake riparian
boundary determ nati ons. He directed attention to the slide
entitled, "Quiet Title Actions.” He said quiet title actions
quiet other <clains to a title, are expensive, are tine
consum ng, have an uncertain outcone, but are necessary when no
ot her option exists. He expressed his hope for less contention
in the future as a result of case law. He highlighted the slide
entitled, "Recordable Disclainmers of Interest,” and said they
are cost effective at approximately $50,000, as conpared to
approximately $1 mllion for each quiet title action. He
reported that Alaska has the only successful recor dabl e
disclaimer of interest (RDI) process in the US., and he
indicated that inproving the process was his nission when he
first was hired in his present job.

8:18: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked why it costs up to $1 million to
get a quiet title.

8:19: 04 AM

MR. OGAN explained that sone points of law can be done on
sumary judgnent, whereas quiet title actions require extensive
title search and hydrological and historical research. He
enphasi zed the labor intensive nature of quiet title actions.

He gave credit to Kent Sullivan, in the Departnment of Law, for

anticipating anything that could nmke the state's <claim
nonsuf fici ent.

8:20: 04 AM

KENT SULLI VAN, Assistant Attorney General, Natural Resources
Section, Departnment of Law, echoed M. Onen's remarks that quiet
title actions are fact intensive and historically based. He
stated that unlike a breach of contract case, where the court
determ nes whether a contract was signed and the argunent
pertains to the law, in a quiet title case the argunent is over
the facts. For exanple, in a navigability case, expert
W tnesses testify regarding the hydrol ogi cal aspects of a stream
based on information gathered through a "fact-intensive effort.”
He said the recordable disclainmer of interest process does not
require the sanme |evel of evidence that would be brought before
a court for a quiet title case.

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -7- February 26, 2013



8:22:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked, "How large or how small of a
tract of land are we talking about? Are we talking about a
conplete water system or are we just tal king about an acre at a
time?"

MR. SULLIVAN said the answer is both. He stated that in one
particular R S. 2477 right-of-way case, which he said is simlar
to a navigability case, a private party had blocked the road.
He said the state elected to file a case specifically addressing
the private party's property, rather than the entire 20 mles of

r oad. In this exanple, the court would be confirmng the R S
2477 right-of-way as to that parcel - not the entire road. He
explained that that can be sinpler and |ess expensive than a
quiet title action for the 20-mle stretch of road. I n ot her

cases, where many parties are disputing the R S. 2477 right-of-
way, the state my choose to bring a quiet title action
i nvol ving dozens of mles of road. Those actions are far nore
conplex than the single party quiet title action, he said.

8:24:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked how a recordable disclainmer of
interest process interacts with a quiet title action, in terns
of change of |and ownershi p.

MR. SULLI VAN responded that a recordable disclainer of interest
is as good as a judgnment, once the parties agree to and sign off
onit; "it's just a different process of getting to that point."

8:25:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES referred to M. QOgan's previous renmarks
about the high cost of quiet title actions and disputed
conveyances. She asked how the process works when "applying to
conveyances that shoul dn't happen.”

MR. OGAN answered, "It is a problem"™ He relayed that when he
served as a Representative, the |egislature passed Senate Bill
305, which instructed DNR to send letters to all the Native
corporations to inform them that BLM may have erroneously
conveyed lands to them that were actually state-owned, to ask
BLM not to "charge that against their acreage entitlenent,” and
to allow the corporations to select upland acreage instead of
the subnerged | ands. He indicated that contrary to
expectations, the response was mninmal. He ventured, "That's

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 8- February 26, 2013



probably the best solution short of quiet title actions." He
said the state has applied for recordable disclainmers of
interest on rivers where there is "a m xed bag of ownership" and
where [DNR] believes BLM has erroneously conveyed subnerged
| ands to Native corporations. He continued as foll ows:

| hope that it'Il put the Native corporations on
notice that they're owning riverbeds that really they
got charged -- their acreage entitlenent was charged
for those riverbeds, and that m ght be the notivation
that wll get them to approach BLM to reconsider and
give them sone nore upland acreage. So, hopefully
that'Il be the resolution. W don't have enough tine,

or enough lifetime, to litigate all those.
8:28:13 AM

MR. OGAN noted there has been a slight shift in BLMs attitude
toward recordable disclainers of interest wwth R S. 2477 rights-
of -way, which has been driven by Uah's quiet title actions
related to 18,000 R S. 2477 rights-of-way in that state.

MR. OGAN directed attention to the slide entitled, "Current
| ssues/ Litigation. He said [the state] has filed a quiet title
action on Msquito Fork. He said [the state] is being sued by
Ahtna, Incorporated, on the Kotsina River. He said Fog Lake and
Dream Creek out in Bristol Bay is an area of contention, because
certain | odges have exclusive rights to guide their clients on
the river that are in conflict with people's rights to access
the river. He related that [the state] is being sued by a
conpany on Lenon Creek over whether BLM i nappropriately conveyed
subnerged | ands before statehood. He said the state believes it
has a good case that those lands were held in trust for the
future state; therefore, that issue wll probably be answered

He said [the state] recently settled a 25-year dispute with a
man who was mining in a state riverbed in Skagway. He said he
thinks the Sturgeon/Nation River case is one of the watershed
cases that wll determine how far the federal jurisdiction
extends into state rivers.

MR. OGAN directed attention to the slide entitled, "Msquito
Fork." He said the state issued mning clains on the Msquito
Fork River; the federal governnent deternmined the river is non-
navi gable; the state filed a conplaint; BLM "denied all our
i ssues"; the present phase is the discovery phase; and the state
has conducted hydrological work on this renote river and has

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 9- February 26, 2013



"floated it." He offered further details. He said, "W believe
that river's unquestionably navigable."

8:31:11 AM

MR. OGAN nmoved on to the slide entitled, "Kotsina River." He
described the alluvial fans of the Kotsina as "a fire hose in
slow notion," shifting back and forth naturally and carrying a
| ot of gravel, which originates from a steep, nountainous area.
He reiterated that [the state] is under dispute wth Ahtna,
Inc., over that river. He directed attention to the slide
entitled, "Sturgeon/Nation River." He noted that t he
Sturgeon/ Nation River is "about the smallest river we have
adj udi cated as navigable."

8:32:43 AM

SENATOR DYSON expressed particular interest in the WMatanuska
Ri ver, because its neandering has taken out private property.
He questioned how "ownership deals" are figured out for those
with titles to private property that extends into an alluvial
fan under state jurisdiction. He then asked who would have
jurisdiction over post-flood attenpts to restore a river's
course to "sonmewhere it's been before but does | ess damage."

MR. OGAN said the courts nake deci sions on a case-by-case basis,
but in general "the title to the bed noves with the bed of the
river." Using an exanple of a state-owned riverbed with a
riparian owner upland from the river, he indicated that gravel
and soil that is gradually and inperceptibly deposited by the
river upland - called accretion - belongs to the upland owner,
while land [l eft exposed] by the [gradual recession of water] -

called reliction - belongs to the state. He added, "If it's
avul sion, which is a sudden, perceptual act, it fixes the
boundary. " He said the state hires national experts to figure

out where the boundaries are, because boundaries nove and are
sometimes subject to interpretation

SENATOR DYSON surm sed that the deposit and erosion activity of
an alluvial fan would stay within the fan.

MR. OGAN said that is generally the case; however, there are
court cases regarding dams, dykes, and accretion resulting in
upl and soil and vegetati on.

8:36:31 AM

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -10- February 26, 2013



MR. OGAN directed attention to the slide entitled, "Wat Kind of
Boat Before Statehood?” He said research shows that before
stat ehood, Native Al askans used skin boats for subsistence. He
said mners typically used polling boats and "polled and |ined
boats up rivers.” He nentioned that Peterborough boats were
used in Alaska quite extensively. He showed slides of an
historic poling boat in the Chicken, Al aska, area, which was
used in the 40-Mle area pre-statehood and is being excavated.
He said David Seaman, a noted boat builder from Honer, Al aska
created a set of working draw ngs.

8:38: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whether frozen rivers are considered
navi gabl e.

MR. OGAN answered, "W do not consider frozen rivers a test for
navigability, and we also do not consider just sinple ... float
pl ane use; and those are based on case |aw" He added, "They
have to be navigable in their ordinary condition."

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES suggested that the ordinary condition of
sone rivers in Al aska would be frozen

8:40: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON, referring to M. (Qgan's previous
description of the novenent of a river, of fered hi s
understanding that "if it's a neander, ... [then] the ownership

changes” and "if it's a sudden occurrence, then the ownership is
fixed."

MR. OGAN responded that that is generally correct, but remarked
that a flood could take out sonmeone's front yard, and that
homeowner woul d then own a riverbed

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked who would have ownership in the
case of a sudden occurrence that "does not swanp your property."”

MR. OGAN offered an exanple in which mners made a road next to
a river and "the channel eventually noved over there and
abandoned the existing riverbed." He said the state's position
is that it owns the portion of the riverbed that was abandoned,
because it was an avul sive act and the new river bed is owned by

the upland owner. He relayed that an avulsive act can be a
natural or mannmade occurrence. He said there is other case |aw
that disagrees with that phil osophy. For exanple, in a case

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -11- February 26, 2013



related to the Colorado River, the State of Arizona sued to a
quiet title to a riverbed it believed it owned after a damm was
built. The court ruled that that was secreted |and, which
bel ongs to the upland owner, which was BLM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said that 1in QOmha, Nebraska, near
Eppley [Airfield], there is a section of [the Mssouri River]
that is lowa, because the river changed course suddenly and

"stranded lowans in the mddle of ... Qmha." He questioned
what might result if such a thing were to occur in Al aska. He
asked, "lIs that going to be contested ownership or is that going
to be fixed to those who were there, and so you don't have to go
through the idea, well, this is now federal land or this is now
state land - it's whosever land it was?"

MR. OGAN said the answer depends on whether anyone raises the
I ssue. He indicated that the exanple Representative I|saacson
gave is a classic exanple of an avul sive event.

8:44: 08 AM

SENATOR DYSON asked if a property owner who has experienced
his/her property eroding into a river can backfill Iand
materials out to the original line.

MR. OGAN answered vyes, if the |land owner obtains the proper

permts fromthe Corps of Engineers.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the state ever gets into trouble for
taking land that was "perceived to be private property.”

MR. OGAN deferred to M. Sullivan.
8:45: 14 AM
MR SULLIVAN related that there is case lawrelated to R S. 2477

ri ghts-of-way, where challenges have been made and quiet title
actions have been filed and title |land owners have said there is

a potential "takings issue.” However, in the Wdener (ph) case,
the court ruled that the statute of limtations had passed on
the takings, so the court refused to grant any relief for the
t aki ngs. He offered his understanding that this is an issue

t hat has not cone up often

8:46: 51 AM

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -12- February 26, 2013



MR. SULLI VAN began his presentation regarding R S. 2477 rights-
of - way. He explained that he would begin the PowerPoint
presentation at the point at which he left off during the
previous neeting of the Senate State Affairs Standing Conmmittee

and House State Affairs Standing Conmittee [on 2/14/13]. He
directed attention to the slides showing the following R S. 2477
ri ghts-of-way routes: the Dalton H ghway, from Livengood to

Prudhoe Bay; Farnmers Loop Road, in Fairbanks; DeBarr Road, in
Anchor age; Klutina Lake Road, out of Copper Center; the Iditarod

Trail; and the Chilkoot Trail. He then showed slides
illustrating the varying characteristics of R S. 2477 rights-of-
way, including those in the area of Chicken, Al aska; an R S.

2477 right-of-way built to serve a cenetery outside of Chitina,
Al aska; and the Chicken Ridge Trail near Chicken, Al aska, which
is heavily used by mners and hunters.

MR, SULLIVAN directed attention to a slide entitled, "Wy are
R S. 2477s inportant?” He said Alaska is the largest state in
the country, but has fewer public roads than Connecticut, the
third smallest state in the country. Al aska has 16,302 mles,
whi l e Connecticut has 21,020 mles. He showed a slide depicting
Al aska's highway system without R S. 2477 rights-of-way, wth
t he exception of the Dalton H ghway, followed by a map of Al aska
with the RS, 2477 rights-of-way. He stated, "Wthout R S
2477, we're very limted on what we mght be able to do wth
regard to devel opnment of travel corridors in the state.™

8:50: 22 AM

MR.  SULLIVAN, in response to CHAIR DYSON, said the map that
shows the R S. 2477 rights-of-way is on DNRs web site. The
link to the web site is found at the end of the presentation.

8:50: 31 AM

MR, SULLIVAN continued to the slide that shows that R S. 2477
rights-of-way are critical to: give public access to the
state's land and resources; enable the state to reasonably
manage, maintain, and develop its |ands, resources; and nmaintain

state sovereignty and preserve the state's rights. He directed
attention to the slide entitled, "Previous R S. 2477 Research,
| nvestigation & Legislative Codification." He said an R S. 2477

right-of-way project was begun in the early 1990s in an effort
by DNR to systematically review potential R S. 2477 rights-of-
way in the state. This was done by researching Al aska Road
Comm ssion reports, United States Ceol ogical Survey (USGS) naps,
and United States Postal Service (USPS) records and contracts,

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -13- February 26, 2013



and it culmnated in the legislature's codification of over 600
routes in AS 19. 30. 400.

MR, SULLIVAN turned to the slide entitled, "Recent R S. 2477
Devel opnents,” and noted that in 2011, the legislature
aut hori zed a [$599, 000] increnent increase to DNR [for FY 2012].
Since that increase, he said, DNR has conducted extensive field
work and historical research related to R S. 2477 rights-of-way
and had DOL hire an attorney dedicated to R S. 2477 right-of -way
work. M. Sullivan said he is the person who was hired to fill
that position. He said DNR has engaged in peer-to-peer neetings
with representatives in Uah, because that state is years ahead
of Alaska in its efforts to pursue R S. 2477 rights-of-way; the
intent is to learn from Uah's successes and fail ures.

MR. SULLIVAN said Alaska's R 'S. 2477 right-of-way prosecution
strategy was developed and refined, based on the information
gl eaned from Utah, including the careful selection of initial
clainms to prosecute in order to avoid establishing bad case |aw.
He said, "There may not be existing case law on a particul ar
i ssue right now, but if you succeed in court in getting an issue
resol ved, then you can take the precedent and you can apply it
to other situations. And that's why it's incredibly inportant
to put your best foot forward in these ... early RS 2477
cases.” M. Sullivan said another developnent has been the
preparation of a detailed analysis of what is needed to take an
R S. 2477 right-of-way case to trial. He said what is needed to
take a case to trial can be sonewhat different from what is
needed in order to nake a prelimnary determ nation that an R S.
2477 right-of-way exists; the level of evidence needed for a
trial is huge. He enphasi zed the inportance of identifying key
W tness testinony. He explained that a witness who is going to
have knowl edge as to an R S. 2477 right-of-way will be fairly
old today; therefore, it is inportant to identify those
Wi tnesses and preserve their testinony to the extent possible.

8: 55: 28 AM

MR. SULLIVAN directed attention to a series of slides addressing
"Recent Legal Developnents.” He referred to the aforenentioned
case in Chickaloon - State v. Lonewlf - where a private

| andowner bl ocked an R 'S. 2477 right-of-way - a |loop road that
connects with the denn Hi ghway. He said that right-of-way was
in a neighborhood and was being used by honmeowners in the area.
He explained that M. Lonewlf felled several trees across the
road and erected a detour sign, which forced people to drive up
his |oop driveway, within 10-15 of his house, at which point he

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -14- February 26, 2013



woul d stop the driver, tell themto slow down, inform them that
it was not a public right-of-way, and then let them go on their
way. M. Sullivan said this created a safety issue, and the
state did not want to provide the opportunity for a | andowner to
harass people using a public right-of-way or have energency
vehicle services disrupted. The state sued to enjoin M.
Lonewol f and prevent him from doing that. The state got an
injunction initially and a default against M. Lonewlf and wll
likely get a judgnment soon in that case.

MR, SULLI VAN said in another case - Dickson v. State - a private
| andowner sued the state seeking to prevent use of a portion of

the historic lditarod Trail near Knik. He said the nmatter is
continuing in litigation. M. Sullivan said historically the
| ditarod Race went across this trail until the |andlord bl ocked

it in 1982, but since then there is another R S. 2477 right-of-
way route that has been used across the property for the Junior
Iditarod races and a lot of the other Iditarod qualifying
events. He said this matter continues to be actively litigated.

8:58: 04 AM

MR. SULLIVAN said that as part of the Valdez to Copper Center
Trail, Klutina Road is one of Alaska's nost historically rich
R S. 2477 rights-of-way in Al aska; however, in Ahtna, Inc. .
State, Ahtna, Inc. sued the state, claimng that road is not an

R S. 2477 right-of-way. He said that case continues to be
litigated. He then related that DO. has prepared a draft
conplaint addressing litigation in the Chicken, Al aska, area,

involving RS. 2477 rights-of-way, which involve dozens of mles
of road across nunerous parcels of private property, federal
property, and mning clainmns. He said that case will soon be
filed.

8:59:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked M. Sullivan if he thinks the state
is nmaking a mstake by not assigning nore attorneys to focus on
federal overreach

MR.  SULLIVAN said he cannot speak for DOL, but his own
perception is that federal overreach issues are an inportant
part of the whole analysis, but not the only part. He expl ai ned
that R S. 2477 rights-of-way involve a lot of state |law, not
just federal law, and those |aws overlap; therefore, an attorney
| ooking only at federal overreach would be viewing only "a
portion of R S. 2477." He said of the cases he nentioned

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 15- February 26, 2013



previously, three are in state court, while one wll be in
federal court.

9:01: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES, regarding attrition of wtnesses, asked
if the state is adequately funded to support "doing the research
while they're still alive."

MR.  SULLIVAN answered that a mnultitude of issues are being
addressed within budgetary constraints, but nore could always be
done.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked M. Sullivan to confirm whether the
current program is robust enough to gather the information
needed before the w tnesses have di ed.

MR. SULLIVAN said that is a difficult question to answer. He
said with unlimted resources it would be possible to identify
nore w tnesses; however, he said, "We're happily working within
our budget,"” and "we're doing what we can."

CHAIR DYSON expressed appreciation for the wrk that M.
Sul l'i van does.

9:04: 14 AM

JOANNE BLACKBURN stated that there are sonme guiding principles
and subtle laws regarding riparian rights within the U S. She
concurred with M. GOgan that the Equal Footing Doctrine was
established by federal court and certainly has application in
Al aska. She said she finds it ironic that the State of Al aska
has not placed an R S. 2477 right-of-way on the railroad tracks,
whi ch she said are at the exact location the Iditarod Trail was
run at 20-Mle. She stated, "No one who |oves dogs or was in a
hurry to save lives would have run their dogs up on the | edges
and precipices that we see; they ran along the bottom of the

val ley." She said it is agreed by the U'S. Departnent of
Agriculture, the US. Forest Service, and the Al aska Railroad
Corporation that "the railroad itself 1is the exact

super highway that was used for this transportation.” She said
this corridor has not been clained for the people of Al aska.

M5. BLACKBURN offered her understanding that the railroad was
built in 1923 under the 1875 Licensing Act; therefore, what was
obtained by the federal operation of +the railroad was a
per neabl e ri ght-of -way. She said the infrastructure is aging

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 16- February 26, 2013



and sinking into the riparian nud. Ms. Blackburn stated it is
ironic that "they" have clainmed a private parcel arising out of
tidelands on either side, the patent of which is derived from
the U S. Departnent of Transportation, not from BLM

M5. BLACKBURN opined that Alaska's lack of claim to the actua
Iditarod Trail is a glaring om ssion. She added, "And by virtue
of that | |ose confidence." She stated that under the Equa
Footing Doctrine, no federal agency can |lean upon a fledgling
state and take its assets. She said real estate is handled like
real estate anywhere el se.

CHAI R DYSON interjected his thanks for M. Bl ackburn's testinony
and said if there was tinme the commttee would get back to her

9:08: 25 AM

STAN LEAPHART, Executive Director, Citizen's Advisory Conm ssion
on Federal Areas (CACFA), Departnent of Natural Resources, gave
a Power Poi nt presentation regarding the comm ssion. He reviewed
information pertaining to the background and history of the
conmm ssion, as shown on a PowerPoint slide: As a result of the
Al aska National |Interest Lands Conservation Act (AN LCA), the
comm ssion was established as a tenporary advisory agency in
1981, authorized initially for seven years, reauthorized in 1988
for ten years, and again in 1998 for an additional five years,
but it was shut down before the end of that period. He
indicated that in 2007, Representative [Mke] Kelly and [then
Representative] John Coghill were involved in legislation to
reestablish the comm ssion, and the conm ssion reestablished its
operations in 2008. He said the commssion is currently
schedul ed to sunset in June [2014].

MR. LEAPHART relayed information regarding nenbership, as shown
on another slide: three nenbers are appointed by the governor;
three nenbers are appointed by the Speaker of the House, one of
whom is a nmenber of the House; and three nenbers are appointed
by the President of the Senate, two of whom are nenbers of the
public, and one of whom is a nenber of the Senate. He said
statute directs that the public nenbers be "representative of
diversity of users and uses of federal land in the state.” He
related that two weeks ago, a nenber of the conmm ssion resigned,
but the conm ssion wel comed Senator Coghill as its newest nenber
at its last neeting.

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -17- February 26, 2013



MR. LEAPHART directed attention to the next slide, which lists
the duties of the comm ssion [under AS 41.37.220(a) through
(d)], and he cited subsection (a), which read as foll ows:

(a) The comm ssion shall consider, research and hold

hearings on the consistency with federal Ilaw and
congr essi onal i nt ent on managenent , operation
pl anni ng, devel opnent , and additions to federal

managenent areas in the state.

MR. LEAPHART offered his understanding that then Senator Betty

Fahrenkanp, the <conmission's first chair, interpreted that
| anguage to nean the comm ssion closely watches the actions of
federal agencies. Directing attention to the next slide, he

par aphrased [ AS 441. 37. 240], which read as foll ows:

The comm ssion nmay request the attorney general to
file suit against a federal official or agency if the
comm ssion determnes that the federal official or
agency is acting in violation of an Act of Congress,
congressional intent, or the best interest of the
st ate.

MR. LEAPHART said the commission has filed suit against the
federal governnment regarding cabin regulations that were adopted
in the late 1980s; however, the case was dismssed for |ack of
st andi ng.

9:12: 00 AM

MR. LEAPHART directed attention to the next slide, which
addresses agency cooperation and shows [AS 41.37.250], which
read as foll ows:

Each state departnent, agency, board, and commi ssion
shall cooperate with the conmission in the fulfillnment
of the duties of the comm ssion under AS 41.37.220.

MR. LEAPHART, referring to information on the next slide,
regarding administration, stated that the conmssion is within
the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), has two staff nenbers
who answer to the conmmssion but work closely wth other
agencies, has an office located in the DNR Northern Region
office in Fairbanks, and neets a mninmum of three tinmes a year
usual ly in Anchorage, Juneau, and Fairbanks. He noted that the
website is also listed on that slide.

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 18- February 26, 2013



9:12: 41 AM

MR. LEAPHART turned to the slide regarding working rel ationshi ps
and consultation. He said the conm ssion reviews and anal yzes
public land rmanagenent agency docunents, planning docunents,
regul ations, and policies, talks to the public, and submts
comments on those planning docunents. He said the conmm ssion
wor ks the ANILCA program but is independent of it. He said the
main focus of the commssion is to talk to nenbers of the public
to identify issues and problens. He related that the comm ssion
wor ks wi th congressional delegation, which has been a big help
in drawi ng attention to the issues.

MR. LEAPHART turned to the next slide, and he noted that AN LCA
came out of Section 17(d)(2) of +the Alaska Native dains
Settlement Act (ANCSA), which directed the Secretary of the
Interior to withdraw up to 80 mllion acres for the purpose of
creating national parks, wildlife refuges, and wild and scenic
rivers [systens]. ANI LCA was passed in Decenber of 1980,
foll ow ng over eight years of debate.

MVR. LEAPHART  highlighted the next sl i de, which  shows
conservation system units and federally designated areas in
Al aska, including: 17 national park areas covering [over] 51
mllion acres, [over] 32 mllion of which are designated
wi | derness - the nost restrictive classification of federal |and
that exists; 16 national wldlife refuges covering [over] 76
mllion acres, over 18 mllion acres of which are designated

wi |l derness; and 2 national forests covering over 22 mllion
acres. M. Leaphart relayed that nore than 90 percent of the
total refuge system is in Al aska. He further noted that the

only wilderness area in the forest land is in the Tongass, which
totals about 7 mllion acres. He said there are two w | derness
study areas in Chugach National Forest, which are managed as if
they were wlderness, because they are congressionally
desi gnat ed study areas.

MR. LEAPHART said the Bureau of Land Managenent (BLM has three
desi gnated areas [covering 2,686,026 acres] and manages six wld
and scenic rivers. He said there are 26 designated national
wild and scenic rivers in Al aska, which total alnost 3,200 river
mles. Alaska also has one national trail system which is the
Iditarod Trail. 1In total, he reported, Al aska has approxi mately
154 mllion [federally designated] acres.

MR. LEAPHART directed attention to a map on the next slide,
which shows the federal conservation system units in Al aska

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -19- February 26, 2013



after the passage of AN LCA the areas in [red] are national
wildlife refuges; the areas in blue are national park units; the
blue lines represent wild and scenic rivers; and the national
forests are the Tongass and the Chugach.

9:16: 21 AM

MR. LEAPHART referred to a slide showing 32 years of AN LCA
changes and chall enges, and he said many of the park plans are
25 years old and are in revision process. He said BLM is
dealing with three of its wld and scenic river nmanagenent
plans, as well as the Steese National Conservation Area and the
Wi te Mountains National Recreation Area.

MR. LEAPHART turned to the next slide, which |ists key past
[itigation: Northern Al aska Environnental Center v. Evison,
which he said essentially termnated all mning in three park
units in Alaska; Sierra Cub v. Penfold, which involved three of
the six wild and scenic rivers managed by BLM and changed the
way people were able to mne and had a nmgjor inpact on placer
m ning; and Alaska Wldlife Aliance v. Jensen.

9:18:22 AM

CHAIR DYSON asked if the organization in Uah is simlar to
CACFA.

MR. LEAPHART offered his understanding that [Utah's] primry
focus is on the failure of the federal government to honor its
state's conpact. He said Alaska's focus is nore on softening
the blow of federal nmanagenent. He added, "W're strictly an
advi sory group.”

CHAI R DYSON asked if U ah has policy power.

MR. LEAPHART answered, "My understanding is that they do."

9:19: 20 AM

CHAI R DYSON asked what M. Leaphart would like the legislature
to know and what action he would like it to take.

MR. LEAPHART, in response, directed attention to a slide that

shows plans, policies, and projects reviewed in 2012. He
indicated that the list represents about 14,000 pages of
material, all of which dictate how the aforenentioned 150
mllion acres are managed. He said the comm ssion has found

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 20- February 26, 2013



that over the last 32 years, federal agencies have "gradually
chi pped away at those special provisions" [of AN LCA]. He said
he knows the public is overwhelnmed, and he enphasized how
difficult it is to focus the man power available just to AN LCA
rel ated issues. He explained that ANILCA is not the only
federal law that the conm ssion addresses; it attends to Acts
addressing forest service nanagenent and BLM nanagenent, such as
the Federal Land Policy and Managenent Act. He said the
commssion is busy and policies are changing constantly.
Agencies don't have nmuch institutional nmenory, so they do not
recogni ze all the agreenents that were reached adm ni stratively.

9:23: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON recol lected that M. Leaphart had said
that in litigation there are sone people whose |and has been
taken and they have not yet been conpensated. He posited that
that seenms to be an onerous omi ssion, and he asked if there is
sonet hing the | egislature could be doing to help.

MR. LEAPHART responded that there was |egislation passed by the
del egation to set up a conpensation system however, the problem
is there is disagreenent over the value of the clains. He
of fered further details.

9:24: 44 AM
MR. LEAPHART directed attention to a slide showng what is

currently under review. He said the big issue this year is that
the National Park Service inplenmented a nunber of regulations to

preenpt state hunting regulations on national preserves. He
said, "The problem was ... they had a mniml nunber of public
heari ngs and they never used the board process the way it was
intended to be used.” He said conpendi um process has inproved

over the years, but the agency has consistently failed to follow
its own procedures for inplenmenting closures and restrictions.

MR. LEAPHART directed attention to a slide showi ng upcom ng

issues. He said one of the two forest plans will undergo a ful
revision, and the Tongass is going to undergo a five-year
revi ew. The other areas, he said, are updates of existing

pl ans. For example, the Central Yukon Resource Managenent Pl an
is about 25 years old. He highlighted the BLM Guide Capacity
Study & Environnental Assessnment for BLM Lands, and he offered
hi s understanding that depending on the outcone of that study,
BLM nmay be restricting the nunber of guides they wll be
permtting to operate on their |ands.

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -21- February 26, 2013



MR. LEAPHART turned to the next slide, which shows key issues
that the commssion |ooks at when considering a plan. He
directed attention to the second one on the list, which is the
ANILCA "No Mre ddause,” and he said he put together a
menmor andum whi ch shows the legislative history of the "No Mre
Clause"” [included in the commttee packet]. He said Alaska's
del egation, based in part by requests nmade by the |egislature,
made certain the clauses were in ANILCA, and the agencies have
consistently violated those cl auses.

9:28:14 AM

MR. LEAPHART directed attention to a slide wth "Suggested
Readi ng." He recomrended the second source listed, d(2), Part 2
- Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act of 1980 -
Prom ses Broken, which was put together by the Alaska M ners

Associ ati on. He said A Land Gone Lonesone deals wth cabin
owners and "Yukon Charlie preserves." He said the conmm ssion
went to Eagle in 1984 to hold hearings about park service cabin
regul ati ons. He recollected that at that tinme, there were 14

people living in the preserve, but currently no one lives there.
He concluded the presentation with the final slide, which shows
a cartoon of a juggler and the caption, "Wat is involved in
i npl ementati on of ANILCA?" He offered to answer questions.

9:29:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER enphasi zed that M. Leaphart and his staff
condense 14,000 papers filled wth information for the
comm ssion, which then takes action and wites letters, so if
M. Leaphart asks for help, then the | egislature should Iisten.

CHAIR DYSON said the legislature needs M. Leaphart to specify
what help is needed both in statute and resources. He then
asked M. (Qgan to address the issue previously raised by M.
Bl ackbur n.

9:30: 51 AM

MR. OGAN stated that the right-of-way of the railroad was
already in place at statehood. He said he does not have first-
hand know edge of where the historic R'S. 2477 right-of-way
route between Seward and Anchorage is, so he cannot sufficiently
answer the question.

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -22- February 26, 2013



CHAI R DYSON asked M. (Ogan to get back to the commttee on that
point. He commended all the presenters on their efforts.

9:31:49 AM

CHAI R DYSON handed t he gavel back to Chair Lynn.

9:32:14 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the joint

House State Affairs Standing Commttee and Senate State Affairs
Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:32 a.m

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -23- February 26, 2013



